Minutes of a Budget Scrutiny Committee of Bolsover District Council held in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne, on Tuesday 14<sup>th</sup> January 2014 at 1400 hours.

#### PRESENT:-

Members:-

Councillors A. Anderson (to Minute Number 0735), K. Bowman, Mrs P. M. Bowmer, R. Brooks, J. A. Clifton, T.J. Connerton, M.G. Crane, M. J. Dooley, S. W. Fritchley, H. J. Gilmour, J. E. Hall, R.A. Heffer, D. McGregor, G.J. Parkin, S. Peake, T. Rodda, J.E. Smith, R. Turner, K. F. Walker, D.S. Watson, G.O. Webster and J. Wilson.

Councillor K. Bowman in the Chair

Officers:-

B. Mason (Director of Corporate Resources), P. Campbell (Head of Housing) and A. Bluff (Governance Officer).

#### 0730. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J.E. Bennett, T. Cook, C.P. Cooper, B.W. Hendry, V.P. Mills, C. Munks and S. Wallis.

#### 0731. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items of business to consider.

## 0732. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.

# 0733. MINUTES – 25<sup>th</sup> NOVEMBER 2013

Moved by Councillor J.E. Smith, seconded by Councillor R. Turner **RESOLVED** that the minutes of a meeting of a Budget Scrutiny Committee held on 25<sup>th</sup> November 2013 be approved as a correct record.

# 0734. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2014/15 TO 2016/17 (OUTLINE OF REPORT TO BE PRESENTED TO EXECUTIVE ON 3<sup>RD</sup> FEBRUARY 2014)

Members considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources in relation to the Council's Medium Term Financial Plan. It was noted that the report would be presented to the Executive on 3<sup>rd</sup> February 2014.

Once the Executive had considered the position as set out in the report, any recommendations made by them would be referred to Council on 12<sup>th</sup> February in order to secure agreement to the Council's budget in respect of the 2014/15 financial year.

The report considered the General Fund Revenue Account, the Housing Revenue Account and the Capital Programme. There were a number of common features within the reports for these accounts, in particular financial projections were provided with regard to the following;

<u>2013/14 Estimated Outturn Position</u> - This was the current year budget revised to reflect changes which had taken place or which it was anticipated would take place during the remainder of this financial year. It would therefore provide a more accurate indication of the likely outturn position than the original budget.

<u>2014/15 Original Budget</u> - This was the proposed budget for the next financial year commencing 1<sup>st</sup> April 2014, which Council would need to consider for approval at its meeting on 12<sup>th</sup> February 2014.

2015/16 and 2016/17 Financial Plan - In accordance with good practice the Council agrees its annual budgets within the context of a Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which includes financial projections in respect of the next three financial years. This approach provides the Council with a longer planning horizon over which to develop service plans and to ensure that its underlying level of expenditure remains in line with its underlying level of resources. Effective multi-year planning is particularly important in the current climate given that the Comprehensive Spending Review and other Central Government announcements are based upon plans which incorporate significant year on year expenditure reductions for local government.

Under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council's Section 151 Officer is required to comment on the robustness of the estimates made and also on the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. The Council's S151 Officer, (the Director of Corporate Resources), is satisfied that the methodology adopted to calculate the estimates is robust and provides Members with reliable information on which to base their decisions. In arriving at the assessment that the methodology adopted is robust the Chief Financial Officer is satisfied that the policies upon which the estimates are based are reasonable and that these policies have been applied consistently across the Council's activities.

# **General Fund**

### Estimated Outturn 2013/14;

With respect to the General Fund, the Council was currently anticipating that an in year surplus would be achieved which would mean no call on general fund balances in respect of 2013/14. The Director of Corporate Resources noted that the Council continued to provide good levels of service for local residents.

# Original Budget 2014/15;

The total savings required for 2014/15 were £0.636m. A range of savings proposals totalling £0.430m had been determined which would mean that the unidentified savings target for 2014/15 was one of £0.206m.

# Budgets 2015/16 and 2016/17;

On the basis that the full £0.636m was achieved in respect of 2014/15, there would be a further £0.953m to be achieved in respect of 2015/16 and an estimated figure of £0.767m for 2016/17. Given the Government's spending plans it was expected that further reductions would be required in future financial years and it was therefore important that the Council maintained its momentum in achieving ongoing financial savings.

# Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Estimated Outturn 2013/14;

The overall position for the HRA in 2013/14, was that there was a forecast surplus of £0.086m in the current year, which if realised would increase the HRA balances to £1.861m.

#### Original Budget 2014/15;

The key issues for 2014/15 were that the average rent increase required to comply with Government rent convergence requirements was one of 6.24% which results in the average rent for a Council house increasing to £83.61per week (on a 48 week basis).

#### **Stock Condition Survey**

The outcome of the full stock condition survey was not yet known so the proposed budgets may need to be revisited again as the full data from the survey became available. One development within the 2014/15 HRA budget was the requirement to increase the debt repayment sum in line with the long term business plan to repay the settlement debt over a 30 year period. The principal repayment figure would increase by £1.5m to £3.5m for 2014/15. The Governments new proposals for rent increases are not yet finalised but have been included within our budget forecasts from 2015/16 onwards. The position shows that the HRA remains in a stable position over the period of the MTFP. It also demonstrates that the plans and financial projections set out within the HRA Business Plan which underpins the MTFP in respect of the HRA secure financial sustainability and enable the provision of a high quality housing service to our tenants to remain the key focus.

### **Capital Programme**

With regard to the Capital Programme the majority of expenditure will continue to be in respect of the HRA Programme, which was funded by capital resources ring fenced to the Council's HRA. The financial provision to fund the ongoing programme

of housing refurbishment work was planned to continue at a level between £3m and £4m per annum. That level of spend would be reviewed in the light of the HRA stock condition survey which it was anticipated will be available in early 2014. The Council was also working to secure Heritage Lottery Funding for the Mill complex at Pleasley Vale. Once the work in respect of stock condition and Pleasley Vale had been completed and the Council had secured its outstanding Capital Receipts, then a further report will be brought back to Council concerning expenditure priorities on the Capital Programme.

# Other Considerations (eg Environmental, Crime and Disorder, Design and Community Safety)

These were covered in the Service Plans which were based upon the resources allocated by the budgets recommended for approval within the Medium Term Financial Plan.

# **Equalities Issues**

These were covered in the Service Plans which were based upon the resources allocated by the budgets recommended for approval within the Medium Term Financial Plan.

# Risk Management and Policy and Performance Issues

A Financial Risk Register had been developed in respect of each of the main accounts and was provided in Appendices attached to the report.

Policy and Performance issues were covered in the Service Plans which were based upon the resources allocated by the Budgets recommended for approval within the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Members asked various questions in relation to repayment of prudential borrowing, income to the repairs and maintenance budget in relation to the Council's housing stock, cost of the Ranger Service to the HRA, rental income from the Tangent Business Hub and Pleasley Vale Mills, ex Kissingate Leisure Centre, the savings target, the Risk Register, the Reward Grant and debt repayment to which the Director of Corporate Resources replied.

Lengthy discussion took place.

Members requested further detailed financial information on the following items:

- Bolsover's funding cost to Environmental Health
- The Parenting Practitioner Post
- The Growth Agenda

In relation to a short discussion on Right to Buy, the Head of Housing advised Members that the Government were proposing to change the level of discount on Right to Buy properties by increasing it to 70% and also the qualifying period from 5 years to 3 years.

A short discussion took place regarding difficult to let properties being bedsits in sheltered housing accommodation and the properties at New Bolsover.

Members thanked the Director of Corporate Resources and the Head of Housing for the report and presentation.

Councillor Anderson left the meeting at this point.

#### 0735. UPDATE FROM SCRUTINY CHAIRS

# Safe and Inclusive Scrutiny Committee;

The Chair of Safe and Inclusive Scrutiny Committee reported that the Committee had now finished their review on Barriers to Accessing Private Rented Housing and this would be presented to Scrutiny Management Board at its meeting on 17<sup>th</sup> February and the Executive on 17<sup>th</sup> March 2014.

# Improvement Scrutiny Committee:

The Chair of Improvement Scrutiny Committee reported that the Committee would now be monitoring the implementation of the recommendations from their review work on the Council's Discretionary Housing Payments Policy which had been presented and approved by Executive on 28<sup>th</sup> October 2013.

# Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Committee;

The Chair of Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Committee reported that the Committee's review work on High Street and Town Centre Regeneration for Bolsover Town Centre was completed and a report was currently being drafted. The report would be presented to the Executive in March 2014. The Chair added that it had not been a straight forward review to carry out.

The meeting concluded at 1520 hours.